#### IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA ATLANTA DIVISION

EUGENE ALLEN, HILARY ANIH,	)	
CHLOE BEVERLY, MICHAEL	)	
HIGH, JASON McCULLOUGH,	)	
CATHERINE RAGLAND, and	)	
MARLO ROSE, for and in behalf of	)	
themselves and others similarly	)	
situated,	)	
·	)	
Plaintiffs,	)	CIVIL ACTION NO.
	)	
v.	)	
	)	
ELITE PROMOTIONAL	)	
MARKETING, INC., a/k/a Elite	)	
Marketing Group, <i>a/k/a</i> Elite	)	
Marketing Group (Atlanta), a/k/a	)	
EliteACQ,	)	
•	)	
Defendant.	)	
	,	

### COMPLAINT <u>COLLECTIVE ACTION - CLASS ACTION</u>

Plaintiffs EUGENE ALLEN, HILARY ANIH, CHLOE BEVERLY, MICHAEL HIGH, JASON McCULLOUGH, CATHERINE RAGLAND, and MARLO ROSE (collectively, "PLAINTIFFS"), for and in behalf of themselves and others similarly situated and the classes they seek to represent, hereby state claims for relief under the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. § 201 et seq. (the "FLSA"), and Georgia law on the grounds stated below.

#### Jurisdiction and Venue

- 1. This Court has original subject-matter jurisdiction (a) under 28 U.S.C. § 1331 because this action arises under the laws of the United States, and (b) pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) because this is an action to recover the liability prescribed by 29 U.S.C. § 207. This Court, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 1367, has supplemental jurisdiction over all of PLAINTIFFS' state-law claims in this action because they are so related to the claim within the Court's original jurisdiction that they form part of the same case or controversy under Article III of the United States Constitution.
- 2. Under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b), venue is proper because a substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to the claims in this action occurred Northern District of Georgia.

#### The Parties

- 3. Plaintiff EUGENE ALLEN is a citizen of the state of Georgia and the United States and resides Northern District of Georgia.
- 4. Plaintiff HILARY ANIH is a citizen of the state of Georgia and the United States and resides Northern District of Georgia.
- 5. Plaintiff CHLOE BEVERLY is a citizen of the state of Georgia and the United States and resides Northern District of Georgia.
- 6. Plaintiff MICHAEL HIGH is a citizen of the state of Georgia and the United States and resides Northern District of Georgia.

- 7. Plaintiff JASON McCULLOUGH is a citizen of the state of Georgia and the United States and resides Northern District of Georgia.
- 8. Plaintiff CATHERINE RAGLAND is a citizen of the state of Georgia and the United States and resides Northern District of Georgia.
- 9. Plaintiff MARLO ROSE is a citizen of the state of Georgia and the United States and resides Northern District of Georgia.
- 10. Defendant ELITE PROMOTIONAL MARKETING, INC.

  ("DEFENDANT"), a/k/a Elite Marketing Group, a/k/a Elite Marketing Group

  (Atlanta), a/k/a EliteACQ, is a New York corporation doing business in the Northern District of Georgia.
  - 11. DEFENDANT is subject to the personal jurisdiction of this Court.
- 12. DEFENDANT can be served by delivering a copy of the summons and of the complaint to its registered agent for service of process: Incorp Services Inc., 2000 Riveredge Parkway, N.W., Suite 885, Atlanta, GA 30328.

#### **Grounds for this Action**

- 13. Plaintiff EUGENE ALLEN is current employee of DEFENDANT.
- 14. Plaintiff EUGENE ALLEN has been employed by DEFENDANT since on or about October 27, 2016.
  - 15. Plaintiff HILARY ANIH is current employee of DEFENDANT.
- 16. Plaintiff HILARY ANIH has been employed by DEFENDANT since on or about Marc 3, 2017.

- 17. Plaintiff CHLOE BEVERLY is a former employee of DEFENDANT.
- 18. Plaintiff CHLOE BEVERLY was employed by DEFENDANT from on or about September 2016 to on or about April 13, 2017.
- 19. Plaintiff MICHAEL HIGH is a former employee of DEFENDANT.
- 20. Plaintiff MICHAEL HIGH was employed by DEFENDANT from on or about January 2016 to on or about August 2017.
- 21. Plaintiff JASON McCULLOUGH is a former employee of DEFENDANT.
- 22. Plaintiff JASON McCULLOUGH was employed by DEFENDANT from on or about August 2016 to on or about August 2017.
- 23. Plaintiff CATHERINE RAGLAND is a former employee of DEFENDANT.
- 24. Plaintiff CATHERINE RAGLAND was employed by DEFENDANT from on or about November 2015 to on or about May 8, 2017.
  - 25. Plaintiff MARLO ROSE is current employee of DEFENDANT.
- 26. Plaintiff MARLO ROSE has been employed by DEFENDANT since on or about July 2014.

- 27. At all times relevant to this action, PLAINTIFFS were each employed as a Sales Representative, also called a "Brand Ambassador," by DEFENDANT at Hartsfield-Jackson Atlanta International Airport.
- 28. At all times relevant to this action, PLAINTIFFS each worked under the direct supervision of one of DEFENDANT's managers at kiosks in the Delta Air Lines gate areas bearing large "Delta®" and "American Express®" logos.
- 29. At all times relevant to this action, PLAINTIFFS' job was to ask air-travelers in the Delta gate areas to complete and submit (a) applications for the Gold Delta SkyMiles American Express Credit Card and the Platinum Delta SkyMiles American Express Credit Card ("AMEX"), and (b) a survey for rating the individual plaintiff's performance.
- 30. At all times relevant to this action, the credit card applications could be completed at the kiosk using one of DEFENDANT's computer tablets or on the applicant's own computer at their convenience using a code that enabled DEFENDANT to connect the submitted applications to the individual plaintiff.
- 31. At all times relevant to this action, performance surveys could be completed on the applicant's own computer at their convenience using a code that enabled DEFENDANT to connect the submitted surveys to the individual plaintiff.

- 32. At all times relevant to this action, DEFENDANT promised to pay each of PLAINTIFFS \$10.00 per hour, plus a bonus for (a) each credit card application approved by AMEX, and (b) each performance survey submitted by an air-traveler.
- 33. At all times relevant to this action, PLAINTIFFS used DEFENDANT's electronic timekeeping system when clocking-in and clocking-out.
- 34. At all times relevant to this action, DEFENDANT used the entries in its electronic timekeeping system to calculate PLAINTIFFS' compensation.
- 35. At various times relevant to this action, PLAINTIFFS each worked through, and did not take, any lunch break while employed by DEFENDANT.
- 36. At various times relevant to this action, DEFENDANT and DEFENDANT's managers falsely reduced each PLAINTIFFFS' actual hours worked in a workweek by assigning 30-minute lunch breaks never taken.
- 37. DEFENDANT and DEFENDANT's management were aware that PLAINTIFFS in fact worked during the 30-minute periods falsely deducted from their actual time worked in a workweek.

- 38. At various times relevant to this action, PLAINTIFFS each worked past their normally scheduled end time while employed by DEFENDANT.
- 39. At various times relevant to this action, DEFENDANT and DEFENDANT's managers falsely reduced each PLAINTIFFFS' actual hours worked in a workweek by cutting their actual hours worked past the normally scheduled end time.
- 40. DEFENDANT and DEFENDANT's management were aware that PLAINTIFFS in fact worked additional hours past their normally scheduled end time that were falsely excluded from their actual time worked in a workweek.
- 41. DEFENDANT did not pay PLAINTIFFS for all the time actually worked for those workweeks in which DEFENDANT falsely reduced their hours.
- 42. At various times relevant to this action, DEFENDANT did not pay PLAINTIFFS all the bonuses earned and due for credit card applications approved by AMEX and for performance surveys submitted by air-travelers.
- 43. At all times relevant to this action, PLAINTIFFS' primary job duties as a Sales Representative did not involve the exercise of independent judgment.

- 44. At all times relevant to this action, each of PLAINTIFFS was an "employee" of DEFENDANT within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. § 203(e)(1).
- 45. During each PLAINTIFFS' employment, DEFENDANT was an "employer" within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. § 203(d).
- 46. During PLAINTIFFS' employment, DEFENDANT was not exempt from the overtime obligations for an "employer" under the FLSA.
- 47. During each year of PLAINTIFFS' employment, DEFENDANT had an annual gross volume of sales made that was more than \$500,000.
- 48. During each year of PLAINTIFFS' employment, DEFENDANT had employees engaged in commerce within the meaning of the FLSA—who participated in the movement of persons or things in interstate commerce by regularly using the instrumentalities of interstate commerce in their work, such as the telephone, internet, and U.S. Mail, for interstate communications.
- 49. During each year of PLAINTIFFS' employment, DEFENDANT was an enterprise engaged in commerce within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. 203(s)(1).
- 50. As DEFENDANT's employees, PLAINTIFFS were each engaged in commerce within the meaning of the FLSA by participating in the movement of persons or things in interstate commerce by regularly using the

instrumentalities of interstate commerce in their work, such as the telephone, internet, and U.S. Mail, for interstate communication.

- 51. As DEFENDANT's employee, PLAINTIFFS were each engaged in commerce and was employed by an enterprise engaged in commerce within the meaning of the FLSA.
- 52. During PLAINTIFFS' employment, PLAINTIFFS were each covered by 29 U.S.C. § 207(a).
- 53. DEFENDANT classified PLAINTIFFS' position as exempt for purposes of overtime compensation under the FLSA.
- 54. PLAINTIFFS' position was not exempt for purposes of overtime compensation under the FLSA.
- 55. At various times relevant to this action, Plaintiffs HILARY ANIH, CHLOE BEVERLY, MICHAEL HIGH, JASON McCULLOUGH, CATHERINE RAGLAND, and MARLO ROSE (the "FLSA-PLAINTIFFS") each worked more than 40 hours in a workweek while employed by DEFENDANT.
- 56. DEFENDANT and DEFENDANT's management were aware of the extra hours that FLSA-PLAINTIFFS worked in excess of 40 hours in a workweek.

- 57. DEFENDANT did not pay FLSA-PLAINTIFFS all the overtime compensation properly due for work performed in excess of 40 hours in a workweek.
- 58. DEFENDANT did not pay FLSA-PLAINTIFFS all the overtime compensation properly due for work performed in excess of 40 hours in a workweek at the rate of 1.5 times their regular rate of pay, as increased to account for bonuses earned during the pay period.

#### FLSA Collective-Action Allegations - Unpaid Overtime

- 59. Plaintiffs HILARY ANIH, CHLOE BEVERLY, MICHAEL HIGH, JASON McCULLOUGH, CATHERINE RAGLAND, and MARLO ROSE (the "FLSA-PLAINTIFFS") bring this action as a collective action pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b).
- 60. The Class that FLSA-PLAINTIFFS seek to represent, called the "FLSA-CLASS," is defined as:

All current and former hourly paid employees of DEFENDANT who worked as Sales Representatives at Hartsfield-Jackson Atlanta International Airport, at anytime from [three years prior to mailing date of Notice to class] to [Notice mailing date], and who were not paid all overtime compensation properly due as required by federal law.

61. FLSA-PLAINTIFFS consent to participate in this collective action through the written consents filed with this pleading [Doc. 1-1], which are a part of this pleading for all purposes pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 10(c).

- 62. The written consents of other similarly situated individuals to participate in this lawsuit may be filed with the Court from time to time as they opt-in to this litigation, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b).
- 63. FLSA-PLAINTIFFS seek to bring all claims arising under the FLSA for and in behalf of themselves individually and all other similarly situated employees in the FLSA-CLASS who:
- (a) were employees of DEFENDANT in any pay period falling within three chronological years immediately preceding the date on which this action was initially filed and continuing thereafter through the date on which final judgment is entered in this action; and
- (b) timely file, or have already filed, a written consent to be a party to this action pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b).
- 64. FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members seek unpaid overtime wages, liquidated damages, pre- and post-judgment interest, and attorney's fees and costs.
- 65. FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members were employed by DEFENDANT at Hartsfield-Jackson Atlanta International Airport in Atlanta, Georgia.
- 66. DEFENDANT willfully misclassified the positions of FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members as exempt for purposes of overtime compensation under the FLSA.

- 67. FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members used DEFENDANT's electronic timekeeping system when clocking-in and clocking-out.
- 68. DEFENDANT used the entries in its electronic timekeeping system to calculate compensation for FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members.
- 69. DEFENDANT compensated FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members for no more than 40 hours worked in a workweek on a straight-time basis based on their hourly rate of pay, regardless of (a) how many hours in excess of 40 hours worked in a workweek, and (b) without increasing the overtime rate of pay to account for bonuses earned during the pay period.
- 70. The primary job duties of FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members did not involve exercising independent judgment.
- 71. FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members were employees of DEFENDANT engaged in commerce.
- 72. FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members were each an "employee" of DEFENDANT within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. § 203(e)(1).
- 73. During the employment of FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members, DEFENDANT was an "employer" within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. § 203(d).

- 74. During the employment of FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members, DEFENDANT was not exempt from the overtime obligations for an "employer" under the FLSA.
- 75. During each year of employment of FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members, DEFENDANT had an annual gross volume of sales made that was more than \$500,000.
- 76. During the employment of FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members, DEFENDANT had employees engaged in commerce.
- 77. During the employment of FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members, DEFENDANT was an enterprise engaged in commerce within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. 203(s)(1).
- 78. FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members are similarly situated.
- 79. During the employment of FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members, each individual was covered by 29 U.S.C. § 207(a).
- 80. At various times relevant to this action, FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members worked more than 40 hours in a workweek.
- 81. DEFENDANT did not pay FLSA-PLAINTIFF and the FLSA-CLASS members all the overtime compensation properly due for work performed in excess of 40 hours in a workweek.

- 82. DEFENDANT and DEFENDANT's management were aware of the extra hours FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members worked in excess of 40 hours in a workweek.
- 83. At various times relevant to this action, FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members earned bonuses during workweeks in which they worked in excess of 40 in a workweek, but—besides not paying them 1.5 times their hourly rates of pay—DEFENDANT did not increase their hourly rates of pay for overtime hours to account for the bonuses earned.
- 84. At various times relevant to this action, DEFENDANT and DEFENDANT's managers falsely reduced FLSA-PLAINTIFFS' and the FLSA-CLASS members' actual hours by assigning them 30-minute lunch breaks, when in fact they continued to work—resulting in DEFENDANT not paying all the overtime compensation properly due for those workweeks.
- 85. FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members were subject to similar time-keeping policies and procedures.
- 86. FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members were supposed to be paid their proper overtime compensation at an hourly rate.
- 87. FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members were supposed to be paid their proper overtime compensation based on bonuses earned.

- 88. DEFENDANT subjected FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members to a common policy, practice, plan or scheme that required or permitted them to perform uncompensated work for the benefit of DEFENDANT in excess of 40 hours per workweek.
- 89. DEFENDANT subjected FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members to a common policy, practice, plan or scheme that required or permitted them to work more than 40 hours during each workweek without paying these employees all their overtime compensation properly due.
- 90. FLSA-PLAINTIFF and the FLSA-CLASS members were not paid proper overtime compensation as required by 29 U.S.C. § 207(a) for all workweeks.

#### Rule 23 Class-Action Allegations - Unpaid Wages & Bonuses

91. The class that PLAINTIFFS seek to represent, called the "RULE 23 CLASS," is defined as:

All current and former hourly paid employees of DEFENDANT who worked as Sales Representatives at Hartsfield-Jackson Atlanta International Airport, at anytime within four (4) years of the filing of this action, and who were not paid all wages and bonuses earned.

92. The RULE 23 CLASS is so numerous that joinder of all RULE 23 CLASS members is impracticable. PLAINTIFFS believe the RULE 23

CLASS contains more than 45 individuals, and the actual number of RULE 23 CLASS members can easily be ascertained through discovery.

- 93. There are numerous questions of law and fact common to the RULE 23 CLASS. Those questions include but are not limited to:
  - (a) Were the time records of the RULE 23 CLASS members, including PLAINTIFFS, falsified.
  - (b) Was the compensation of managers of the Sales Representatives at Hartsfield-Jackson Atlanta International Airport based, at least in part, on depressing the total labor costs for hourly rate employees, including the RULE 23 CLASS members and PLAINTIFFS.
  - (c) Was the full amount of wages due to each of the RULE 23 CLASS members, including PLAINTIFFS, paid for each pay period for all hours worked below 40 in a workweek.
  - (d) Was the full net amount of bonuses earned and due to each of the RULE 23 CLASS members, including PLAINTIFFS, paid for each pay period.
  - (e) Were wages earned of the RULE 23 CLASS members, including PLAINTIFFS, not paid without justification.
  - (f) Were wages earned of the RULE 23 CLASS members, including PLAINTIFFS, not paid knowingly and intentionally.
  - (g) Did a policy or practice exist under which the RULE 23 CLASS members, including PLAINTIFFS, worked off-the-clock for at least a 30-minute lunch period.
- 94. The claims of PLAINTIFFS are typical of the claims of the RULE 23 CLASS, because PLAINTIFFS were hourly workers who worked as Sales Representatives whose wages and bonuses DEFENDANT did not pay.

- 95. PLAINTIFFS have no interests that are antagonistic or adverse to those of the RULE 23 CLASS members.
- 96. PLAINTIFFS and the RULE 23 CLASS members were injured by the direct and proximate reason of DEFENDANT's unlawful conduct.
- 97. PLAINTIFFS are adequate representatives of the RULE 23 CLASS.
- 98. PLAINTIFFS will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the RULE 23 CLASS because they have retained counsel experienced in class- and collective-action litigation and complex litigation.
- 99. PLAINTIFFS seek certification of a class under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(3).
- 100. The failure to pay wages and bonuses by DEFENDANT, which remains ongoing, has had the effect of decreasing the total compensation paid for labor and services actually supplied to the detriment of the RULE 23 CLASS members—accordingly, equitable relief, including declaratory relief, that prevents DEFENDANT from continuing not to pay wages and bonuses earned and due is appropriate on a class-wide basis.
- 101. The questions of law and fact common to all members of the RULE 23 CLASS predominate over any questions that may affect only individual RULE 23 CLASS members.

- 102. A class action is a superior method of adjudicating the RULE 23 CLASS members' claims because individual actions would unnecessarily burden the Court and create the risk of inconsistent results.
- 103. Given the costs and expenses required to prosecute the unpaid wage-and-bonus claims against DEFENDANT, the costs of individual actions will likely exceed or consume the amount recovered in most any individual action—accordingly, the cost and expense of pursuing individual actions will thus likely require individual RULE 23 CLASS Members to forego their claims against DEFENDANTS if they cannot prosecute such claims as RULE 23 CLASS members.
- 104. PLAINTIFFS are not aware of any litigation concerning this controversy that has already been initiated by or against any RULE 23 CLASS members.
- 105. Because many if not most RULE 23 CLASS members reside in this district and most if not all the events giving rise to this action took place in this district, it is both desirable and efficient to concentrate the litigation of these claims in this particular forum.
- 106. This action is manageable because the evidence proving that DEFENDANT has been engaging in the alleged unlawful conduct is common to the RULE 23 CLASS members. Furthermore, the identities of all the RULE 23 CLASS members are known to DEFENDANT.

#### <u>Unlawful FLSA Retaliation - Plaintiff Michael High</u>

- 107. On or about August 2017, Plaintiff MICHAEL HIGH complained to a DEFENDANT manager about not being paid overtime compensation.
- 108. On or about August 2017, within a few days of complaining about DEFENDANT's violation of the FLSA's overtime requirement, Plaintiff MICHAEL HIGH was fired by DEFENDANT.

#### **CLAIMS AGAINST THE DEFENDANT**

## Count 1 29 U.S.C. § 207(a) (Unpaid Overtime Compensation)

- 109. Paragraphs 1-90 above are re-alleged and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.
- 110. By engaging in the conduct alleged above in Paragraphs 13-90, DEFENDANT violated the FLSA with respect to FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members described above in Paragraph 60 by not paying them all their overtime compensation properly due at the proper rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in a workweek, all in violation of 29 U.S.C. §§ 207(a), 216(b).
- 111. By engaging in the conduct alleged above in Paragraphs 13-90, DEFENDANT willfully—*i.e.*, voluntarily, deliberately, intentionally, and with reckless disregard—violated the FLSA with respect to FLSA-

PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members described above in Paragraph 60, all in violation of 29 U.S.C. § 255.

- 112. As a direct and proximate result of DEFENDANT's conduct alleged above in Paragraphs 13-90, FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members described above in Paragraph 60 were not paid all wages due at the proper rate of pay in the manner required by the FLSA.
- 113. As a direct and proximate result of DEFENDANT's conduct alleged above in Paragraphs 13-90, FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members described above in Paragraph 60 were not paid all overtime compensation properly due them as required by the FLSA.
- 114. DEFENDANT's conduct giving rise to this action was not in good faith and not based on any reasonable grounds for believing such conduct did not violate the FLSA.
- alleged above in Paragraphs 13-90, FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members described above in Paragraph 60 are entitled to recover their unpaid overtime compensation and an additional equal amount as liquidated damages, pre- and post-judgment interest, and reasonable attorney's fees and costs of this action, all through the date of entry of judgment, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b), all in an amount to be determined at trial.

## Count 2 29 U.S.C. § 215(a)(3) (Retaliation for Exercising FLSA Rights)

- 116. Plaintiff MICHAEL HIGH re-alleges paragraphs 1-90 and 107-108 above and incorporates them by reference as if fully set forth herein.
- 117. By engaging in the above-described conduct, DEFENDANT violated the FLSA with respect to Plaintiff MICHAEL HIGH by discriminating against him—the retaliatory firing as punishment—because he complained about DEFENDANT's failure to pay overtime compensation as required by the FLSA.
- 118. As a result of the unlawful actions of DEFENDANT, Plaintiff MICHAEL HIGH has suffered and is continuing to suffer injury including, but not limited to, incurring pecuniary losses, emotional pain, suffering, humiliation, inconvenience, mental anguish, loss of enjoyment of life, and other non-pecuniary losses.
- 119. Plaintiff MICHAEL HIGH seeks compensatory, punitive, and nominal damages, in addition to reasonable attorney's fees and costs of this action, all through the date of entry of a final non-appealable judgment, all pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b), and all in an amount to be determined as specified by law.

## Count 3 Breach of Contract (Unpaid Wages and Bonuses)

- 120. Paragraphs 1-42 and 91-106 above are re-alleged and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.
- 121. By engaging in the conduct alleged above in Paragraphs 13-42 and 91-106, DEFENDANT breached its contract with PLAINTIFFS and the RULE 23 CLASS members described above in Paragraph 91 by not paying them all their wages properly due for all hours worked below 40 in a workweek and all bonuses earned and properly due.
- 122. As a direct and proximate result of DEFENDANT's conduct alleged above in Paragraphs 13-42 and 91-106, PLAINTIFFS and the RULE 23 CLASS members described above in Paragraph 91 were not paid all wages and bonuses properly due them under Georgia contract law.
- 123. As a direct and proximate result of DEFENDANT's conduct alleged above in Paragraphs 13-90, PLAINTIFFS and the RULE 23 CLASS members described above in Paragraph 91 are entitled to recover their unpaid wages and bonuses and pre- and post-judgment interest, all through the date of entry of judgment, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b), all in an amount to be determined at trial.

## Count 4 $O.C.G.A. \S 13-6-11$ (Litigation Expenses)

- 124. Paragraphs 1-42 and 91-106 above are re-alleged and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.
- 125. By engaging in the conduct alleged above in Paragraphs 1-42 and 91-106, DEFENDANT acted in bad faith, has been stubbornly litigious, and has caused PLAINTIFFS and the RULE 23 CLASS members described above in Paragraph 91 unnecessary trouble and expense.
- 126. As a direct and proximate result of such conduct by DEFENDANT, PLAINTIFFS and the RULE 23 CLASS members described above in Paragraph 91 are entitled to their litigation expenses, including attorney's fees and costs related to this litigation, pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 13-6-11.

#### PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, plaintiffs EUGENE ALLEN, HILARY ANIH, CHLOE BEVERLY, MICHAEL HIGH, JASON McCULLOUGH, CATHERINE RAGLAND, and MARLO ROSE respectfully pray that this Court enter judgment in their favor and in favor of the FLSA-CLASS members described above in Paragraph 60 and the RULE 23 CLASS members described above in Paragraph 91 and against DEFENDANT for:

- A. Certification of a collective-action class pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b).
- B. All amounts of unpaid overtime compensation that FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members described above in Paragraph 60 would have received but for DEFENDANT's unlawful conduct, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b).
- C. An additional equal amount of all unpaid overtime compensation as liquidated damages, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b).
- D. All damages suffered by Plaintiff MICHAEL HIGH because of DEFENDANT's unlawful retaliation against him in violation of the FLSA.
- E. All reasonable attorney's fees and costs of the action through entry of judgment, pursuant to the FLSA, including all reasonable attorney's fees and costs for:
- (1) the time spent plus costs reasonably incurred throughout this action relating to the claim of FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members described above in Paragraph 60 under the FLSA;
- (2) the time spent litigating both the entitlement to and amount of attorney's fees and costs incurred throughout this action plus costs of investigation and litigation reasonably incurred relating to the claim of FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members described above in Paragraph 60 under the FLSA, whether in connection with any settlement,

compromise, any accepted offer of judgment under Fed. R. Civ. P. 68, or any other form of judgment entered pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 54-58;

- (3) the time spent litigating the fairness and reasonableness of any settlement, compromise, or accepted offer of judgment under Fed. R. Civ. P. 68, or any other form of judgment entered pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 54-58, pursuant to and as required by Lynn's Food Stores, Inc. v. United States, 679 F.2d 1350 (11th Cir. 1982), and
- (4) the time spent explaining to FLSA-PLAINTIFFS and the FLSA-CLASS members described above in Paragraph 60 any settlement, compromise, or accepted offer of judgment under Fed. R. Civ. P. 68, or any other form of judgment entered pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 54-58.
  - F. Certification of a class action pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23.
- G. All amounts of unpaid wages and bonuses that PLAINTIFFS and the RULE 23 CLASS members described above in Paragraph 91 would have received but for DEFENDANT's unlawful conduct, pursuant to Georgia contract law.
- H. All litigation expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees and costs of the action, through entry of judgment, pursuant to the O.C.G.A. § 13-6-11, including all reasonable attorney's fees and costs for:

- (1) the time spent plus costs reasonably incurred throughout this action relating to the claim of PLAINTIFFS and the RULE 23 CLASS members described above in Paragraph 91 under Georgia law;
- (2) the time spent litigating both the entitlement to and amount of litigation expenses, including attorney's fees and costs, incurred throughout this action plus costs of investigation and litigation reasonably incurred relating to the claim of PLAINTIFFS and the RULE 23 CLASS members described above in Paragraph 91 under Georgia law, whether in connection with any settlement, compromise, any accepted offer of judgment under Fed. R. Civ. P. 68 or O.C.G.A. § 9-11-68, or any other form of judgment entered pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 54-58;
- (3) the time spent explaining to PLAINTIFFS and the RULE 23 CLASS members described above in Paragraph 91 any settlement, compromise, or accepted offer of judgment under Fed. R. Civ. P. 68 or O.C.G.A. § 9-11-68, or any other form of judgment entered pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 54-58.
- I. Pre-judgment and post-judgment interest on all amounts awarded in this action, pursuant to the FLSA or Georgia law, including lost compensation, liquidated damages, and litigation expenses including attorney's fees, costs, and costs of investigation and litigation of this action.

- J. A declaration, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2201, that DEFENDANT has breached its contract under Georgia law with PLAINTIFFS and the RULE 23 CLASS MEMBERS by not paying all wages and bonuses due.
- K. An order requiring DEFENDANT to direct its managers to stop falsifying hours worked by Sales Representatives.
- L. All such other and further relief as may be deemed just and proper.

#### **DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL**

Plaintiffs demand a jury trial on all issues triable of right by a jury.

Respectfully submitted,

#### s/ Marc Garber

ALAN H. GARBER
Georgia Bar No. 283840

ahgarber@garberlaw.net

MARC N. GARBER
Georgia Bar No. 283847

mngarber@garberlaw.net

THE GARBER LAW FIRM, P.C.

4994 Lower Roswell Rd Ste 14

Marietta, GA 30068-5648

(678) 560-6685

(678) 560-5067 (facsimile)

Attorneys for the Plaintiffs and the Putative Classes

#### IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA ATLANTA DIVISION

EUGENE ALLEN, et al., for and in	)	
behalf of themselves and others	)	
similarly situated,	)	
Plaintiffs,	)	CIVIL ACTION NO.
v.	)	
ELITE PROMOTIONAL	)	
MARKETING, INC., etc.,	)	
Defendant.	)	

### EXHIBIT TO COMPLAINT - CONSENTS TO BE PARTY PLAINTIFFS

Written consents to become party plaintiffs in this action are attached for the following individuals:

- HILARY ANIH,
- CHLOE BEVERLY,
- MICHAEL HIGH,
- JASON McCULLOUGH,
- CATHERINE RAGLAND,
- MARLO ROSE

Respectfully submitted,

#### <u>s/ Marc Garber</u>

ALAN H. GARBER
Georgia Bar No. 283840
<a href="mailto:ahgarber@garberlaw.net">ahgarber@garberlaw.net</a>
MARC N. GARBER
Georgia Bar No. 283847

mngarber@garberlaw.net

THE GARBER LAW FIRM, P.C. 4994 Lower Roswell Rd Ste 14 Marietta, GA 30068-5648 (678) 560-6685 (678) 560-5067 (facsimile)

Attorneys for the Plaintiffs and the Putative Classes

#### 

### CONSENT TO SUE AND TO JOIN COLLECTIVE ACTION UNDER THE FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT

I worked as an hourly rate employee for Elite Promotional Marketing, Inc. ("ELITE"), a/k/a Elite Marketing Group, a/k/a Elite Marketing Group (Atlanta), a/k/a EliteACQ, performing the duties of a Sales Representative. Throughout my employment, I was not paid the proper overtime compensation for all work performed in excess of 40 hours in a work week at the rate of 1.5 times my regular rate of pay.

I hereby consent to be a plaintiff in an action under the Fair Labor Standards Act ("FLSA"), 29 U.S.C. § 201 *et seq.*, to secure any unpaid wages, unpaid overtime compensation, liquidated damages, attorney's fees, costs, and all other relief from my ELITE employment and any other associated or legally culpable persons.

I authorize The Garber Law Firm, P.C., and any associated attorneys to represent me in any such action brought pursuant to the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 201 et seq., including a collective action. I agree to be bound by any adjudication of the Court. I further agree to be bound by any collective action settlement herein approved by my attorneys and approved by the Court as fair, adequate, and reasonable.

Date: 4/2-6/2018

SIGNATURE

I worked as an hourly rate employee for Elite Promotional Marketing, Inc. ("ELITE"), a/k/a Elite Marketing Group, a/k/a Elite Marketing Group (Atlanta), a/k/a EliteACQ, performing the duties of a Sales Representative. Throughout my employment, I was not paid the proper overtime compensation for all work performed in excess of 40 hours in a work week at the rate of 1.5 times my regular rate of pay.

I hereby consent to be a plaintiff in an action under the Fair Labor Standards Act ("FLSA"), 29 U.S.C. § 201 *et seq.*, to secure any unpaid wages, unpaid overtime compensation, liquidated damages, attorney's fees, costs, and all other relief from my ELITE employment and any other associated or legally culpable persons.

I authorize The Garber Law Firm, P.C., and any associated attorneys to represent me in any such action brought pursuant to the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 201 *et seq.*, including a collective action. I agree to be bound by any adjudication of the Court. I further agree to be bound by any collective action settlement herein approved by my attorneys and approved by the Court as fair, adequate, and reasonable.

Date:

SIGNATURE

I worked as an hourly rate employee for Elite Promotional Marketing, Inc. ("ELITE"), a/k/a Elite Marketing Group, a/k/a Elite Marketing Group (Atlanta), a/k/a EliteACQ, performing the duties of a Sales Representative. Throughout my employment, I was not paid the proper overtime compensation for all work performed in excess of 40 hours in a work week at the rate of 1.5 times my regular rate of pay.

I hereby consent to be a plaintiff in an action under the Fair Labor Standards Act ("FLSA"), 29 U.S.C. § 201 *et seq.*, to secure any unpaid wages, unpaid overtime compensation, liquidated damages, attorney's fees, costs, and all other relief from my ELITE employment and any other associated or legally culpable persons.

I authorize The Garber Law Firm, P.C., and any associated attorneys to represent me in any such action brought pursuant to the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 201 et seq., including a collective action. I agree to be bound by any adjudication of the Court. I further agree to be bound by any collective action settlement herein approved by my attorneys and approved by the Court as fair, adequate, and reasonable.

Date: 4/13/18

SIGNATURE

I worked as an hourly rate employee for Elite Promotional Marketing, Inc. ("ELITE"), a/k/a Elite Marketing Group, a/k/a Elite Marketing Group (Atlanta), a/k/a EliteACQ, performing the duties of a Sales Representative. Throughout my employment, I was not paid the proper overtime compensation for all work performed in excess of 40 hours in a work week at the rate of 1.5 times my regular rate of pay.

I hereby consent to be a plaintiff in an action under the Fair Labor Standards Act ("FLSA"), 29 U.S.C. § 201 *et seq.*, to secure any unpaid wages, unpaid overtime compensation, liquidated damages, attorney's fees, costs, and all other relief from my ELITE employment and any other associated or legally culpable persons.

I authorize The Garber Law Firm, P.C., and any associated attorneys to represent me in any such action brought pursuant to the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 201 *et seq.*, including a collective action. I agree to be bound by any adjudication of the Court. I further agree to be bound by any collective action settlement herein approved by my attorneys and approved by the Court as fair, adequate, and reasonable.

Date: 4/8/8

SIGNATURE

Case 1:18-cv-01950-MLB Document 1-1 Filed 05/03/18 Page 7 of 8

# 1/ 1

### CONSENT TO SUE AND TO JOIN COLLECTIVE ACTION UNDER THE FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT

I worked as an hourly rate employee for Elite Promotional Marketing, Inc. ("ELITE"), a/k/a Elite Marketing Group, a/k/a Elite Marketing Group (Atlanta), a/k/a EliteACQ, performing the duties of a Sales Representative. Throughout my employment, I was not paid the proper overtime compensation for all work performed in excess of 40 hours in a work week at the rate of 1.5 times my regular rate of pay.

I hereby consent to be a plaintiff in an action under the Fair Labor Standards Act ("FLSA"), 29 U.S.C. § 201 et seq., to secure any unpaid wages, unpaid overtime compensation, liquidated damages, attorney's fees, costs, and all other relief from my ELITE employment and any other associated or legally culpable persons.

I authorize The Garber Law Firm, P.C., and any associated attorneys to represent me in any such action brought pursuant to the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 201 *et seq.*, including a collective action. I agree to be bound by any adjudication of the Court. I further agree to be bound by any collective action settlement herein approved by my attorneys and approved by the Court as fair, adequate, and reasonable.

Date: 4.25.18

SIGNATURE

I worked as an hourly rate employee for Elite Promotional Marketing, Inc. ("ELITE"), a/k/a Elite Marketing Group, a/k/a Elite Marketing Group (Atlanta), a/k/a EliteACQ, performing the duties of a Sales Representative. Throughout my employment, I was not paid the proper overtime compensation for all work performed in excess of 40 hours in a work week at the rate of 1.5 times my regular rate of pay.

I hereby consent to be a plaintiff in an action under the Fair Labor Standards Act ("FLSA"), 29 U.S.C. § 201 et seq., to secure any unpaid wages, unpaid overtime compensation, liquidated damages, attorney's fees, costs, and all other relief from my ELITE employment and any other associated or legally culpable persons.

I authorize The Garber Law Firm, P.C., and any associated attorneys to represent me in any such action brought pursuant to the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 201 et seq., including a collective action. I agree to be bound by any adjudication of the Court. I further agree to be bound by any collective action settlement herein approved by my attorneys and approved by the Court as fair, adequate, and reasonable.

Date: 4/24/18

MARLO ROSE

### ${}_{JS44\,(Rev.\,6/2017\,NDGA)} Case\,\,1:18-cv-01950-ML\\ \underbrace{Rev.\,6/2017\,NDGA}_{IV} Cerovalle \,\,1:18-cv-01950-ML\\ \underbrace{Rev.\,6/20$

The JS44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket record. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ATTACHED)

I. (a) PLAINTIFF(S)		DEFENDANT(S)		
EUGENE ALLEN, HILARY ANIH, CHLOE BEVERLY, MICHAEL HIGH, JASON McCULLOUGH, CATHERINE RAGLAND, and MARLO ROSE, for and in behalf of themselves and others similarly situated		ELITE PROMOTIONAL MARKETING, INC., a/k/a Elite Marketing Group, a/k/a Elite Marketing Group (Atlanta), a/k/a EliteACQ		
(b) COUNTY OF RESIDENCE OF FIRST LISTED PLAINTIFF (EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)		COUNTY OF RESIDENCE OF FIRST LISTED  DEFENDANT  (IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)		
		NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED		
(c) ATTORNEYS (FIRM NAME, ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUM E-MAIL ADDRESS)	IBER, AND	ATTORNEYS (IF KNOWN)		
Alan H. Garber / Marc Garber The Garber Law Firm, P.C. 4994 Lower Roswell Rd Ste 14 Marietta GA 30068-5648, (ph) 678-560-6685 ahgarber@garberlaw.net, mngarber@garber				
II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (PLACE AN "X" IN ONE BOX ONLY)		ZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES  """ IN ONE BOX FOR PLAINTIFF AND ONE BOX FOR DEFENDANT)  (FOR DIVERSITY CASES ONLY)		
1 U.S. GOVERNMENT PLAINTIFF  2 U.S. GOVERNMENT (U.S. GOVERNMENT NOT A PARTY)  4 DIVERSITY (INDICATE CITIZENSHIP OF PARTIES IN ITEM III)	PLF DEF  1 CITIZEN OF THIS STATE  4 A INCORPORATED OR PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THIS STATE  2 CITIZEN OF ANOTHER STATE  5 INCORPORATED AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN ANOTHER STATE  1 INCORPORATED AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN ANOTHER STATE  1 PLACE OF BUSINESS IN ANOTHER STATE  2 PLACE OF BUSINESS IN ANOTHER STATE  2 PLACE OF BUSINESS IN ANOTHER STATE  3 PLACE OF BUSINESS IN ANOTHER STATE  4 PLACE OF BUSINESS IN ANOTHER STATE  4 PLACE OF BUSINESS IN ANOTHER STATE  4 PLACE OF BUSINESS IN ANOTHER STATE  5 PLA			
IV. ORIGIN (PLACE AN "X "IN ONE BOX ONLY)  1 ORIGINAL PROCEEDING 2 REMOVED FROM APPELLATE COURT 3 REMANDED FROM APPELLATE COURT	4 REINSTATED OREOPENED	TRANSFERRED FROM DR SANOTHER DISTRICT Specify District)  MULTIDISTRICT APPEAL TO DISTRICT JUDGE 7 FROM MAGISTRATE JUDGE JUDGMENT		
MULTIDISTRICT 8 LITIGATION - DIRECT FILE				
V. CAUSE OF ACTION (CITE THE U.S. CIVIL STATUTE I JURISDICTIONAL STATUTES UND 29 U.S.C. Section 216(b) - Unpaid Overtime	UNDER WHICH YOU LESS DIVERSITY)	ARE FILING AND WRITE A BRIEF STATEMENT OF CAUSE - DO NOT CITE		
(IF COMPLEX, CHECK REASON BELOW)				
2 1. Unusually large number of parties.	6. Problems locating or preserving evidence			
2. Unusually large number of claims or defenses.	7. Pending parallel investigations or actions by government.			
3. Factual issues are exceptionally complex	☐ 8. Multiple use of experts.			
4. Greater than normal volume of evidence.  5. Extended discovery period is needed.	<ul><li>☐ 9. Need for discovery outside United States boundaries.</li><li>☐ 10. Existence of highly technical issues and proof.</li></ul>			
— 5. Extended discovery period is needed.				
CONTINUED ON REVERSE				
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY  RECEIPT # AMOUNT \$	APPLYING	G IFP MAG. JUDGE (IFP)		
JUDGE MAG. JUDGE (Referral)	NATURE (	OF SUIT CAUSE OF ACTION		

### Case 1:18-cv-01950-MLB Document 1-2 Filed 05/03/18 Page 2 of 2 VI. NATURE OF SUIT (PLACE AN "X" IN ONE BOX ONLY)

CONTRACT - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK  150 RECOVERY OF OVERPAYMENT & ENFORCEMENT OF JUDGMENT 152 RECOVERY OF DEFAULTED STUDENT LOANS (Excl. Veterans) 153 RECOVERY OF OVERPAYMENT OF VETERAN'S BENEFITS	CIVIL RIGHTS - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK  440 OTHER CIVIL RIGHTS  441 VOTING  442 EMPLOYMENT  443 HOUSING/ ACCOMMODATIONS  445 AMERICANS with DISABILITIES - Employment  446 AMERICANS with DISABILITIES - Other  448 EDUCATION	SOCIAL SECURITY - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY  TRACK    861 HIA (1395ff)   862 BLACK LUNG (923)   863 DIWC (405(g))   863 SIWW (405(g))   864 SSID TITLE XVI   865 RSI (405(g))				
CONTRACT - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK    110 INSURANCE   120 MARINE   130 MILLER ACT   140 NEGOTIABLE INSTRUMENT   151 MEDICARE ACT   160 STOCKHOLDERS' SUITS   190 OTHER CONTRACT   195 CONTRACT PRODUCT LIABILITY   196 FRANCHISE   196 FRANCHISE   196 FRANCHISE   197 OFRECLOSURE   230 RENT LEASE & EJECTMENT   240 TORTS TO LAND   245 TORT PRODUCT LIABILITY   290 ALL OTHER REAL PROPERTY   170 TORTS - PERSONAL INJURY - "4" MONTHS   131 AIRPLANE   315 AIRPLANE PRODUCT LIABILITY   320 ASSAULT, LIBEL & SLANDER   330 FEDERAL EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY   340 MARINE   345 MARINE   345 MARINE   762 PERSONAL INJURY - MEDICAL   MALPRACTICE   362 PERSONAL INJURY - MEDICAL   MALPRACTICE   363 PERSONAL INJURY - PRODUCT LIABILITY   367 PERSONAL PROPERTY - PRODUCT LIABILITY   368 ASBESTOS PERSONAL INJURY PRODUCT LIABILITY   369 PERSONAL PROPERTY - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK   370 OTHER FRAUD   371 TRUTH IN LENDING   380 OTHER PERSONAL PROPERTY DAMAGE   385 PROPERTY DAMAGE PRODUCT LIABILITY   DAMAGE   385 PROPERTY DAMAGE PRODUCT LIABILITY   BANKRUPTCY - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK   422 APPEAL 28 USC 157	IMMIGRATION - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK  462 NATURALIZATION APPLICATION 465 OTHER IMMIGRATION ACTIONS  PRISONER PETITIONS - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK  463 HABEAS CORPUS- Alien Detainee 510 MOTIONS TO VACATE SENTENCE 530 HABEAS CORPUS DEATH PENALTY 540 MANDAMUS & OTHER 550 CIVIL RIGHTS - Filed Pro se 555 PRISON CONDITION(S) - Filed Pro se 560 CIVIL DETAINEE: CONDITIONS OF CONFINEMENT  PRISONER PETITIONS - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK  550 CIVIL RIGHTS - Filed by Counsel 555 PRISON CONDITION(S) - Filed by Counsel  FORFEITURE/PENALTY - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK  625 DRUG RELATED SEIZURE OF PROPERTY 21 USC 881 690 OTHER  LABOR - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK  710 FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT 720 LABOR/MGMT. RELATIONS 740 RAILWAY LABOR ACT 751 FAMILY and MEDICAL LEAVE ACT 790 OTHER LABOR LITIGATION 791 EMPL. RET., INC. SECURITY ACT  PROPERTY RIGHTS - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK  820 COPYRIGHTS 840 TRADEMARK  PROPERTY RIGHTS - "8" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK  820 COPYRIGHTS 840 TRADEMARK  PROPERTY RIGHTS - "8" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK  820 COPYRIGHTS 840 TRADEMARK  PROPERTY RIGHTS - "8" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK  830 PATENT-ABBREVIATED NEW DRUG APPLICATIONS (ANDA) - a/k/a Hatch-Waxman cases	FEDERAL TAX SUITS - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK    870 TAXES (U.S. Plaintiff or Defendant)   871 IRS - THIRD PARTY 26 USC 7609  OTHER STATUTES - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK   375 FALSE CLAIMS ACT   376 Qui Tam 31 USC 3729(a)   400 STATE REAPPORTIONMENT   430 BANKS AND BANKING   450 COMMERCE/ICC RATES/ETC.   460 DEPORTATION   470 RACKETTER INFLUENCED AND CORRUPT   ORGANIZATIONS   480 CONSUMER CREDIT   490 CABLE/SATELLITE TV   890 OTHER STATUTORY ACTIONS   891 AGRICULTURAL ACTS   893 ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS   895 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT   899 ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES ACT/   REVIEW OR APPEAL OF AGENCY DECISION   950 CONSTITUTIONALITY OF STATE STATUTES  OTHER STATUTES - "8" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK   410 ANTITRUST   850 SECURITIES / COMMODITIES / EXCHANGE  OTHER STATUTES - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK   896 ARBITRATION   (Confirm / Vacate / Order / Modify)  * PLEASE NOTE DISCOVERY TRACK FOR EACH CASE TYPE.   SEE LOCAL RULE 26.3				
VII. REQUESTED IN COMPLAINT:  CHECK IF CLASS ACTION UNDER F.R.Civ.P. 23 DEMAND \$  JURY DEMAND YES \( \subseteq \text{NO} \) (CHECK YES ONLY IF DEMANDED IN COMPLAINT)						
VIII. RELATED/REFILED CASE(S) IF ANY JUDGE  DOCKET NO.						
CIVIL CASES ARE DEEMED RELATED IF THE PENDING CASE INVOLVES: (CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX)  1. PROPERTY INCLUDED IN AN EARLIER NUMBERED PENDING SUIT.  2. SAME ISSUE OF FACT OR ARISES OUT OF THE SAME EVENT OR TRANSACTION INCLUDED IN AN EARLIER NUMBERED PENDING SUIT.  3. VALIDITY OR INFRINGEMENT OF THE SAME PATENT, COPYRIGHT OR TRADEMARK INCLUDED IN AN EARLIER NUMBERED PENDING SUIT.  4. APPEALS ARISING OUT OF THE SAME BANKRUPTCY CASE AND ANY CASE RELATED THERETO WHICH HAVE BEEN DECIDED BY THE SAME BANKRUPTCY JUDGE.  5. REPETITIVE CASES FILED BY PRO SE LITIGANTS.  6. COMPANION OR RELATED CASE TO CASE(S) BEING SIMULTANEOUSLY FILED (INCLUDE ABBREVIATED STYLE OF OTHER CASE(S)):						
☐ 7. EITHER SAME OR ALL OF THE PARTIES AND ISSUES IN THIS CASE WERE PREVIOUSLY INVOLVED IN CASE NO.  OLISHISSED. This case ☐ IS ☐ IS NOT (check one box) SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME CASE.						
Mr. X. Saul 5/3/18						
		1 1				

### **ClassAction.org**

This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this post: <u>Sales Representatives File Suit Seeking to Change Elite Promotional Marketing's Pay Practices</u>